

Tx:4084229

202400008401

FILED FOR RECORD IN
FAIRFIELD COUNTY, OH
LISA MCKENZIE, COUNTY RECORDER
06/04/2024 11:02 AM
DECLARATION 182.00

TRANSFER NOT NECESSARY

JUN 0 4 2024

County Auditor, Fairfield County, Ohio

CODE OF REGULATIONS

MELROSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION OF PICKERINGTON, INC.

Auditor's Certificate

This is to certify that a copy of this Code of Regulations of Melrose Homeowners Association of Pickerington, Inc., has been filed with the Auditor of Fairfield County, Ohio, this 2 day of Moss, 2021.

By: Heidi Hamilton

Please Cross-Marginal Reference with (1) the Special Warranty Deed recoded in Volume 577, Page 15; (2) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 576, Page 603; (3) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 595, Page 629; (4) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 610, Page 295; (6) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 610, Page 295; (6) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 627, Page 619; (7) The First Amended Declaration of Covenants, Easements, Conditions and Restrictions for Melrose, Section 7 recorded in Volume 651, Page 978; (8) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 650, Page 403; (9) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 627, Page 618; all recorded in the records of the Fairfield County Recorder.

This Instrument was prepared by Jesse M. Kanitz, Esq., Williams & Strohm, LLC, Attorneys at Law, Two Miranova Place, Suite 380, Columbus, Ohio 43215-7047.

CODE OF REGULATIONS (BYLAWS)

FOR

MELROSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION OF PICKERINGTON, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I.	NAME AND LOCATION	5
ARTICLE II.	DEFINITIONS	5
ARTICLE III.	MEMBERSHIP	5
ARTICLE IV.	MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS	5
Section	1. Annual Meetings.	5
Section	2. Special Meetings.	6
Section	3. Conduct of Meetings.	6
Section	4. Notice of Meetings	6
Section	5. Quorum; Adjournment	6
Section	6. Proxies	6
Section	7. Voting Power.	7
Section	8. Action in Writing Without Meeting.	7
Section	9. Voting Rights.	7
Section	10. Meeting with Authorized Communications Equipment and Alternative Voting	7
ARTICLE V.	BOARD OF TRUSTEES	8
Section	1. Trustees	8
Section	2. Removal.	8
Section	3. Qualification.	8
Section	4. Nomination.	9
Section	5. Election.	9
Section	6. Compensation	9
Section	7. Regular Meetings	9
Section	8. Special Meetings	9
Section	9. Quorum.	10
Section	10. Voting Power.	10
Section	11. Action in Writing Without Meeting.	10
Section	12. Powers	10
Section	13. Duties.	11

ARTICLE VI. O	FFICERS	12
Section 1.	Enumeration of Officers	12
Section 2.	Selection and Term.	12
Section 3.	Special Appointments.	12
Section 4.	Resignation and Removal.	12
Section 5.	Duties.	12
ARTICLE VII.	COMMITTIEES	13
ARTICLE VIII.	BOOKS AND RECORDS	13
ARTICLE IX. A	UDITS	13
ARTICLE X. IN	IDEMNIFICATION	14
Section 1.	General	14
Section 2.	Determination	14
Section 3.	Non-Exclusive Right	15
ARTICLE XI. F	SCAL YEAR	15
ARTICLE XII.	AMENDMENTS	15

CODE OF REGULATIONS (the "BY-LAWS")

FOR

MELROSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION OF PICKERINGTON, INC.

ARTICLE I. NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Association is the Melrose Homeowners Association of Pickerington, Inc., also sometimes referred to as the Melrose Homeowners Association (the "Association"), which is a corporation, not-for-profit, created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 1702 of the Revised Code of Ohio, and which Association is also created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 5312 of the Revised Code of Ohio as the homeowners' association for the Melrose Subdivision and all phases contained therein (the "Subdivision"). The principal office of the Association shall be as set forth in its Articles of Incorporation, (the "Articles"), and the place of meetings of Lot owners and of the Board of Trustees of the Association ("the Board") shall be at such place in the county in which the Subdivision is located and as the Board may from time to time designate.

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

All of the terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the same meanings as set forth in the (1) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 577, Page 15; (2) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 576, Page 603; (3) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 591, Page 379; (5) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 610, Page 295; (6) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 627, Page 619; (7) The First Amended Declaration of Covenants, Easements, Conditions and Restrictions for Melrose, Section 7 recorded in Volume 651, Page 978; (8) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 650, Page 403; (9) the Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 627, Page 618; all recorded in the records of the Fairfield County Recorder (which documents are collectively referred to herein singularly as the "Declaration").

ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP

Each Lot owner, as defined in the Declaration, is a member of the Association.

ARTICLE IV. MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS

Section 1. ANNUAL MEETINGS.

Regular annual meetings of the Lot owners shall be held each year, on a date and at an hour established, from time to time, by the Board. The Board must call a meeting of the lot owners association at least once each year and in any event, no more than fourteen (14) months from the date of the prior annual meeting.

Section 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS.

Special meetings of the Lot owners may be called at any time by the president of the Board, upon written request of Lot owners entitled to exercise a majority (50% plus one additional vote) or more of the voting power of Lot owners, and when required by law.

Section 3. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS.

All meetings of Lot owners shall be conducted by the Board, and presided over by the president of the Board, or as otherwise directed by the Board.

Section 4. NOTICE OF MEETINGS.

Written notice of each meeting of Lot owners shall be given by, or at the direction of, the secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least 10 days but no more than 60 days before such meeting, to each Lot owner entitled to vote at such meeting, addressed to the Lot owner's mailing address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Lot owner to the Association for the purpose of notice, or by delivering a copy of that notice at such address at least ten (10) days before the meeting. The notice shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

If the Lot owner provides the Board with an electronic (email) address for the purpose of receiving a meeting notice, the Board may notify that Lot owner of the meeting by sending the meeting notice to the Lot owner at the email address provided by the Lot owner using the same time lines provide above.

Section 5. QUORUM; ADJOURNMENT.

The Lot owners present, in person or by proxy, at any duly called and noticed meeting of Lot owners, shall constitute a quorum for such meeting. Lot owners entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of Lot owners represented at a meeting may, at any time, adjourn such meeting. If any meeting is so adjourned, notice of such adjournment need not be given if the time and place to which such meeting is adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting.

Section 6. PROXIES.

At any meeting of Lot owners, a Lot owner may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the secretary prior to the meeting in accordance with any reasonable deadline or procedure established by the Board. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by a Lot owner of his, her or its Lot, and shall not be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months.

Section 7. VOTING POWER.

Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, or Bylaws, a majority of the voting power of Lot owners voting on any matter that may be determined by the Lot owners at a duly called and noticed meeting shall be sufficient to determine that matter.

Section 8. ACTION IN WRITING WITHOUT MEETING.

Any action that could be taken by Lot owners at a meeting may be taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, in a writing or writings, of Lot owners having not less than a majority (50% plus one additional vote) of the voting power of Lot owners, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be required by the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, or Bylaws.

Section 9. VOTING RIGHTS.

Each Lot owner shall be entitled to one vote for each Lot owned in fee simple. The Board may suspend the voting rights of any Lot owner who has a delinquency with the Association. For purposes hereof, a member shall be deemed to have a delinquency during any time period that such Member has an outstanding sum payable to the Association which sum has not been paid, and which remains unpaid beyond the date on which such payment became due and payable.

Section 10. MEETING WITH AUTHORIZED COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT AND ALTERNATIVE VOTING.

Notwithstanding any provision contained herein to the contrary, during such a time and only during such a time as any governmental rule, regulation, declaration, or other action, including, but not limited to a declared "State of Emergency" and the United States "National Emergency" in effect as of the date of the recording of this Code, prohibits or otherwise makes an in-person meeting of the Lot owners either impossible, unsafe, or impractical, the Board, in its reasonable discretion, shall be authorized to call and/or conduct any annual, special, or other meeting of the Lot owners, including, but not limited to, a meeting called for the purpose electing Trustees to the Board whereby Lot owners may be permitted and/or exclusively allowed to attend the meeting "in person" by the use of Authorized Communications Equipment.

For the purposes of this Section, "Authorized Communications Equipment" shall be defined as any communications equipment that provides a transmission by telephone, video, telecopy, or any electronic means, from which it can be determined that the transmission was authorized by, and accurately reflects the intention of, the Lot owner or Trustee involved and, with respect to meetings, allows all persons participating in the meeting an opportunity to participate in the meeting and to vote on matters submitted to the Lot owners, including an opportunity to read or hear the proceedings of the meeting, participate in the proceedings, and contemporaneously communicate with the persons who are physically present at the meeting, if any. For purposes of providing notice of the meeting, and any other requirements contained herein, the "place"

of the meeting described within this provision may be a designated physical location or a virtual address or number reached solely by means of Authorized Communications Equipment. Any Lot owner who uses Authorized Communications Equipment under this provision is deemed to be present in person at the meeting whether the meeting is held at a designated place or solely by means of Authorized Communications Equipment. In the event a purpose of a meeting of the Lot owners is to elect one or more Trustees to the Board, the Board may forego taking nominations from the floor of the meeting, provided that the membership has been afforded a reasonable opportunity, as determined by the Board, to submit a nomination(s) prior to the election. The Board may adopt procedures and guidelines for the orderly operation of a meeting and voting, and any and all other actions as set forth in Chapter 1702 and 5312 of the Revised Code of Ohio. By way of example and not limitation, this may include the ability of the Board to enact procedures for Lot owners to cast a vote by written ballots, mailed ballots, general or directed proxies, and/or Authorized Communications Equipment, even if any such method is not specified in the other provisions of the Declaration or Bylaws.

ARTICLE V. BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Section 1. TRUSTEES.

There shall be five (5) Trustees and the terms of the Trustees shall be staggered so that the term of at least two (2) Trustees will expire and a successor will be elected at each annual meeting of the Association. Thereafter, at such annual meeting, a successor to the Trustee whose term then expires shall be elected to serve a two (2) year term. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Members, by the vote of Members exercising not less than a majority of the voting power of Members may, from time to time, change the number and terms of Trustees; provided, that in any such event the terms of not less than one-third of the Directors shall expire annually.

Section 2. REMOVAL.

Any Trustee may be removed from the Board with or without cause, by a 75% vote of the Lot owners. In the event of the death, resignation or removal of a Trustee, that Trustee's successor shall be selected by the remaining members of the Board and shall serve until the next annual meeting of Lot owners, when a Trustee shall be elected to complete the term of such deceased, resigned, or removed director. In the event all Trustees are removed, the members shall, at the meeting in which all Trustees are removed, elect Trustees to complete the terms of the removed Trustees.

Section 3. QUALIFICATION.

To qualify for nomination, election, or appointment as a Trustee, the prospect must be an individual who is a Lot owner, spouse of a Lot Owner, or if the Lot is not owned by an individual, any principal, member of a limited liability company, partner, director, officer, trustee, or employee of the owner may be elected to the Board. Such Lot owner shall not be delinquent in the payment of any obligation to the Association, or then be an adverse party to

the Association, or its Board or any member thereof (in that member's capacity as a Board member) in any litigation involving one or more of those parties.

Section 4. NOMINATION.

Nominations for the election of Trustees to be elected by the Lot owners shall be made by the Board or by nominations from the floor at the meetings. All nominees shall be Lot owners or spouses of Lot owners. If the Lot owner is not an individual, that Lot owner may nominate for the Board any principal, member of a limited liability company, partner, director, officer, or employee of that Lot owner.

Section 5. ELECTION.

Election to the Board by the Lot owners shall be by secret written ballot. At such elections, the Lot owners or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, such number of votes as they are entitled to under the provisions of the Declaration. The person receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to the Board. In cases where there is a tie, the winner shall be determined by lot, which is defined as "chance" (flip of a coin, drawing names from a hat, etc.). Cumulative voting is not permitted. The Board may conduct an election with the use of absentee ballots. Absentee ballot voting is permitted.

Section 6. COMPENSATION.

No Trustee shall receive compensation for any service rendered to the Association as a Trustee. However, any Trustee may be reimbursed for his or her actual expenses incurred in the performance of duties.

Section 7. REGULAR MEETINGS.

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on such dates and at such places and times as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Board meetings may be conducted by any method of communication, including electronic or telephonic communication, provided that each member of the Board can hear or read in real time and participate and respond to every other member of the Board.

Section 8. SPECIAL MEETINGS.

Special meetings of the Board shall be held when called by the president of the Board, or by a majority of the Trustees, after not less than three days' notice to each Trustee.

Notice of a special Board meeting may be sent via email to a Trustee so long as the notice is sent no less than three days prior to the special Board meeting and the notice states the location, date, and time of the meeting and the purpose of the meeting.

Section 9. QUORUM.

The presence at any duly called and noticed meeting, in person or by proxy, of Trustees entitled to cast a majority of the voting power of Trustees shall constitute a quorum for such meeting.

Section 10. VOTING POWER.

Each Trustee shall be entitled to a single vote, and, except as otherwise provided in the organizational documents, or by law, the vote of a majority of the Trustees voting on any matter that may be determined by the Board at a duly called and noticed meeting at which a quorum is present shall be sufficient to determine that matter.

Section 11. ACTION IN WRITING WITHOUT MEETING.

Any action that could be taken by the Board at a meeting may be taken without a meeting with the affirmative vote or approval, in a writing or writings, of all of the Trustees.

Section 12.POWERS.

The Board shall exercise all powers and authority, under law, and under the provisions of the organizational documents, that are not specifically and exclusively reserved to the Lot owners by law or by other provisions thereof, and without limiting the generality to the foregoing, the Board shall have the right, power and authority to:

- A. take all actions deemed necessary or desirable to comply with all requirements of law, and the association's organizational documents;
- B. obtain insurance coverage in an amount deemed adequate by the Board;
- C. enforce the covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Declaration;
- D. repair, maintain and improve the Common Elements;
- E. establish, enforce, levy and collect assessments, late fees, delinquent interest, and such other charges as are provided for in the Declaration and O.R.C. §5312;
- F. adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Elements and the personal conduct of Lot owners, occupants and their guests thereon, and establish and levy enforcement charges for the infraction thereof;
- G. suspend the voting privileges and privileges to use the common elements of a Lot owner who is delinquent in the payment of assessments as defined in Article IV, Section 9 of this Code of Regulations;
- H. declare the office of a member of the Board to be vacant in the event such director shall be absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board;
- I. subject to such approvals, if any, as may be required pursuant to the provisions of organizational documents, authorize the officers to enter into one or more

- agreements necessary or desirable to fulfill the purposes and objectives of the association, including, without limitation, management agreements, purchase agreements and loan documents, all on such terms and conditions as the Board in its sole and absolute discretion may determine;
- J. cause funds of the association to be invested in such reasonable investments as the Board may from time to time determine;
- K. borrow funds, as needed, and pledge such security and rights of the association, including the association's right to receive present or future assessments, as might be necessary or desirable to obtain any such loan;
- L. do all things and take all actions permitted to be taken by the association by law, or the association organizational documents not specifically reserved thereby to others; and
- M. impose reasonable charges for preparing, recording or copying amendments to the declaration, resale certificates, or statements of unpaid assessments.

Section 13. DUTIES.

It shall be the duty of the Board to:

- A. cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Lot owners at each annual meeting of Lot owners, or at any special meeting when such statement is requested in writing by Lot owners representing one-half (½) or more of the voting power of Lot owners;
- B. supervise all officers, agents and employees of the Association and see that their duties are properly performed;
- C. as more fully provided in the Declaration, to establish, levy, enforce, and collect assessments;
- D. issue, or to cause an appropriate representative to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid;
- E. procure and maintain insurance and bonds as the Board deems advisable;
- F. cause the property subject to the Association's jurisdiction to be maintained within the scope of authority provided in the Declaration;
- G. cause the restrictions created by the Declaration to be enforced;
- H. prior to imposing a charge for damages or an enforcement assessment as allowed by Ohio law (O.R.C. §5312.11(c), provide the Lot owner a written notice that includes all of the following: (1.) a description of the property damage or violation, (2.) the amount of the proposed charge or assessment, (3.) a statement

that the owner has a right to a hearing before the Board of directors to contest the proposed charge or assessment, (4.) a statement setting forth the procedures to request a hearing, and (5.) a reasonable date by which the Lot owner must cure the violation to avoid the proposed charge or assessment. After any hearing under this rule, the Board shall deliver to the Lot owner a written notice of the charge or assessment within 30 days of the date of the hearing. Any written notice under this rule may be delivered to the Lot owner or any occupant of the Lot by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by regular mail.

- I. cause an annual budget to be prepared; and
- J. take all other actions required to comply with all requirements of law and the Melrose Subdivision organizational documents.

ARTICLE VI. OFFICERS

Section 1. ENUMERATION OF OFFICERS.

The officers of this association shall be a president, a secretary, a treasurer and such other officers as the Board may from time to time determine. All must also be members of the Association. The same person may hold more than one office.

Section 2. <u>SELECTION AND TERM.</u>

Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Declaration or by law, the officers of the association shall be selected by the Board, from time to time, to serve until the Board selects their successors.

Section 3. SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS.

The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

Section 4. RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL.

Any officer may be removed from office, with or without cause, by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the president, or the secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. DUTIES.

The duties of the officers shall be as the Board may from time to time determine. Unless the Board otherwise determines, the duties of the officers shall be as follows:

- A. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Board, shall have the authority to see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out, and shall sign all legal instruments on behalf of the Association
- B. Secretary. The secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes and proceedings of meetings of the Board and of the Lot owners, serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the Lot owners, keep appropriate current records showing the names of Lot owners of the Association together with their addresses, and shall act in the place and stead of the president in the event of the president's absence or refusal to act.
- C. Treasurer. The treasurer shall assume responsibility for all the receipt and deposit in such bank accounts, and investment of funds in such vehicles, as the Board directs, the disbursement of such funds as directed by the Board, the keeping of proper book of account, the preparation of an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the Lot owners at annual meetings and the delivery or mailing of a copy of each to each of the Lot owners. Any or all responsibilities of the Treasurer may be delegated to a managing agent hired by the Board.

ARTICLE VII. COMMITTIEES

The Board may appoint a nominating committee and may appoint such other committees as it deems appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

ARTICLE VIII. BOOKS AND RECORDS

The books, records, and financial statements of the Association, including annual audited financial statements when such are prepared, shall be available during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, upon request to the Association, for inspection by Lot owners and the holders, insurers and guarantors of first mortgages on Lots. Likewise, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances, the Association shall have available for inspection by Lot owners, holders, insurers, and guarantors of first mortgages on Lots, and prospective purchasers, current copies of the association's organizational documents and the rules and regulations governing operation of the homeowners' association. The Association has authority to make reasonable rules and regulations regarding the type of documents inspected or requested by a Lot owner and charge a reasonable fee for copies and a reasonable fee for a property management company's time in securing such documents.

ARTICLE IX. AUDITS

As soon as reasonably possible after each fiscal year of the Association the Board shall cause a review audit and a financial statement to be provided to each Lot owner. In addition, the Board shall cause the preparation and furnishing of an audited financial statement for the immediately preceding fiscal year, within a reasonable time following request (provided that no

such statement need be furnished earlier than 120 days following the end of such fiscal year), in the following circumstances:

- A. to each requesting Lot owner, at the expense of the Association, upon the affirmative vote of Lot owners exercising a majority of the voting power of Lot owners;
- B. to each holder, insurer, or guarantor of a first mortgage upon a Lot who requests the same, in writing, provided the audit, if an audited statement is not already available, shall be prepared at the expense of such requesting party; and
- C. to each holder, insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage on a Lot who makes written request therefor, at the expense of the party requesting, if one is not available.

ARTICLE X. INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. GENERAL

The Association shall indemnify every person who is or has been a Trustee, officer, agent, or employee of the Association and those persons' respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, and judgments, decrees, fines, penalties, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative, and whether in an action or proceeding by or in the right of the Association, or otherwise, in which such person was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party by reason of the fact that person was a Trustee, officer, employee, or agent of the association, or is or was serving in such capacity at the request of the Association, provided that person (a) acted in good faith and in a manner that person believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Association, and (b) in any matter the subject of a criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the questioned conduct was unlawful, but provided that in the case of any threatened, pending, or completed action or suit favor against any such person by reason of that person serving in such capacity, no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of a duty to the association unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought shall determine upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case that person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

Section 2. DETERMINATION.

Unless ordered by a court, the determination of indemnification, pursuant to the foregoing criteria, shall be made (a) by a majority vote of a quorum of Trustees of the Association who were not and are not parties to or threatened with any such action, suit, or proceeding, or (b) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or if a majority of a quorum of disinterested Trustees so direct, in a written opinion by independent legal counsel other than an attorney, or a firm having

associated with it an attorney, who has been retained by or who has performed services for the Association or any person to be indemnified within the past five years, or (c) by the Lot owners, or (d) by the court in which such action, suit, or proceeding was brought

Section 3. Non-Exclusive Right.

Any such indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such person may be entitled under law, any agreement, or any insurance purchased by the Association, or by vote of Lot owners, or otherwise.

ARTICLE XI. FISCAL YEAR

Unless otherwise changed by the Board, the fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January and end of the 31st day of December of every year.

ARTICLE XII. AMENDMENTS

Any modification or amendment of these Bylaws shall be made only by means of an amendment to the Code of Regulations, in the manner and subject to the approvals, terms and conditions set forth therein, and O.R.C. §5312.05(A) and shall be effective from the time a certificate setting forth such modification or amendment is delivered for recording to the Recorder of the county in which the subdivision is located.

[SIGNATURES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the unadopted on or as of the day of	idersigned have caused these Bylaws to be duly 2021.
Melrose Homeowners Association of Pickerington, Inc. Its President Sockson Branker By (Print Name)	f Melrose Homeowners Association of Pickerington, Inc. Manual Poly Its Secretary Dlanual Roth By (Print Name)
STATE OF OHIO COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD ss: Before me, a Notary Public, personally appear capacity as President of the Board of Tru Pickerington, Inc., and Deanna Roth, in h	istees for Melrose Homeowners Association of is/her capacity as Secretaty of the Board of Trustees erington, Inc., and swore the signing hereof to be of
ERIC M ROTH Notary Public State of Ohio My Comm. Expires June 6, 2028	NOTARY PUBLIC Eric M Roth Printed Name